
 

Agenda No. 2023-13 June 26, 2023 Page 1 of 3 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2023-13 

REGULAR MEETING – JUNE 26, 2023 
MEETING WILL BE HELD VIA ZOOM WEBINAR AND AT 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

6:30 p.m.  

 

 

1. ROLL CALL 

 

 

2. INVOCATION 

 

 

3. FLAG SALUTATION 

 

 

4. CEREMONIAL MATTERS (Proclamations, Introductions, Recognitions, Awards) 

 

 

5. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS, oral communications to the City Council on any item not up 

for public hearing. Testimony is limited to three minutes, and the comment period will end 

no later than 7:30 p.m. Any person wishing to speak needs to complete the register located 

in the hallway.  Respectful standards of decorum and courtesy should be observed by all 

speakers. Remarks should be directed to the City Council as a body rather than to any 

particular Council Member or member of the staff. In consideration of others, please 

silence all cell phones and electronic devices.  

 

 

6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Consent agenda items are indicated by asterisks (*). Consent agenda items are considered 

together unless a council member requests that the item be returned to the general agenda. 

Ordinances on the approved consent agenda are automatically advanced to the next regular 

meeting for second reading and public hearing. All other items on the approved consent 

agenda are passed as final. 

 

 

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 

 *a) Regular Meeting Minutes of May 22, 2023 

 

 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 1 of 44

https://www.fairbanksalaska.us/citycouncil/page/stay-connected-city-council


 

Agenda No. 2023-13 June 26, 2023 Page 2 of 3 

8. SPECIAL ORDERS 

 

  a) The Fairbanks City Council will hear interested citizens concerned with the 

following Liquor License Application for Renewal.  Public Testimony will be taken 

and limited to three minutes.   

 
Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Address 

3965 
Republic National 

Distributing 

Wholesale – 

General  

K & L Beverage 

Company, LLC 
945 Elizabeth Street 

4504 Venue Fairbanks 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
Go Alaska Media, LLC 514 2nd Avenue 

4547 Humble Roots Beer Project 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
Humble Roots, LLC 314 Wendell Avenue 

576 The CrowBar 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
Area 51 Properties, LLC 2712 Jessie Street 

 

 

9. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 

 

   a) Special Reports 

 

 

10. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 

 

 

11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 

  a) Ordinance No. 6249 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code Section 

2-260(c)(2) by Increasing the Exposure Limit on BBB-Rated Securities in the City 

Permanent Fund Investment Policy.  Introduced by Council Member Ringstad.  

SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING. 

 

  b) Ordinance No. 6250 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code Chapter 

74, Article V, Room Rental Tax, to Change the Allocation to the Fairbanks 

Economic Development Corporation (FEDC).  Introduced by Council Members 

Ringstad and Marney.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING. 

 

  c) Ordinance No. 6251 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code Chapter 

50 Personnel Section 50-209 Training Reimbursement, Section 50-281 Personal 

Leave, and Section 50-285 Health Insurance Coverage.  Introduced by Council 

Member Cleworth.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING. 

 

  d) Ordinance No. 6253 – An Ordinance Establishing a Permanent Life Insurance Plan 

for Commissioned Officers Within the Fairbanks Police Department to Enhance 

Recruitment and Hiring.  Introduced by Mayor Pruhs.  SECOND READING AND 

PUBLIC HEARING. 

 

 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 2 of 44



 

Agenda No. 2023-13 June 26, 2023 Page 3 of 3 

12. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 

13. DISCUSSION ITEMS (Information and Reports)  

 

  a) Committee Reports 

 

 

14. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

 *a) Reappointment to the Fairbanks Diversity Council 

 

 

15. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 

 

 

16. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

 

 

17. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 

 

18. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

  a) Direction to the bargaining team on wage changes to the current Collective 

Bargaining Agreement between the PSEA and the City to address recruitment and 

retention challenges 

 

  b) Roberts, et al. v. City of Fairbanks Settlement Discussion 

 

  c) IBEW Labor Negotiation Strategy 

 

 

19. ADJOURNMENT  

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 3 of 44



 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES, MAY 22, 2023 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
The City Council convened at 6:30 p.m. on the above date, following a 5:30 p.m. graduation 
ceremony for the Citizen Engagement Academy, to conduct a Regular Meeting of the Fairbanks 
City Council via Zoom webinar and at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, 
Alaska, with Mayor David Pruhs presiding and with the following Council Members in attendance: 
 
Council Members Present: Jerry Cleworth, Seat A  

June Rogers, Seat B 
Sue Sprinkle, Seat C 
Crystal Tidwell, Seat D 
Lonny Marney, Seat E 
John Ringstad, Seat F 
 

Absent: None 
 

Also Present: Margarita Bell, Chief Financial Officer (remotely) 
D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk 
Thomas Chard, City Attorney  
Michael Sanders, Chief of Staff 
Kristi Merideth, FECC Manager (remotely) 
Ron Dupee, Police Chief (remotely) 
Scott Raygor, Fire Chief (remotely) 
Andrew Coccaro, Assistant Fire Chief 
Clem Clooten, Building Official (remotely) 
Robert Pristash, City Engineer 
Jessica Krier, HR Generalist 
Teal Soden, FPD Public Information Officer (remotely)  
Brynn Butler, Housing Coordinator  
Marsha Oss, Reentry Coordinator  
Brenda McFarlane, Crisis Now Coordinator  
 

INVOCATION 
 
The Invocation was given by City Clerk Danyielle Snider. 
 
FLAG SALUTATION 
 
At the request of Mayor Pruhs, Mr. Marney lead the flag salutation. 
 
CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 
Marsha Oss, along with Brynn Butler and Brenda McFarlane, shared that in her culture, they honor 
people who are significant to their community and families with the wrapping of a blanket. Chief 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 4 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 19 

of Staff Mike Sanders was recognized with this honor for his efforts over the last 7.5 years of 
bringing people of the city together and for his support for the recent Symposium on Opioids. 
 
CITIZENS’ COMMENTS 
 
Aaron Lojewski, 1600 Washington Drive, Fairbanks – A Lojewski acknowledged the Mayor’s 
recent trip to the capital to advocate for funding of various needs, including the Polaris Building, 
and offered congratulations for his success. He stated he would like to start brainstorming ways 
for local governmental entities to move towards an approach of unified priorities, so as not to 
confuse legislators with various asks. He suggested a joint committee or joint legislative priorities 
dialogue for the future and expressed willingness to coordinate before he terms out from the 
Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) Assembly. 
 
Mr. Ringstad asked if A. Lojewski had looked into ‘Programs for Progress’ from the 1980s. A. 
Lojewski replied that he had not but that he would reach out to Mr. Ringstad the next day. 
 
Victor Buberge, Fairbanks – V. Buberge spoke of his disapproval of needles being present in 
public areas and to needles being given out for free. He spoke poorly of heroin addicts in general. 
V. Buberge discussed the difference in per-night funding for housing inebriated individuals vs. 
those under influence of other illegal substances.  
 
Corrine Biederman, 717 9th Avenue, #103, Fairbanks – C. Biederman shared that she is a proud, 
clean, and sober mom who loves her kids. She stated she appreciates all kinds of views and 
solutions that use outside-of-the-box thinking. Regarding substance abuse, she shared her view 
that dope is not what kills a user, it is a lack of connection or caring – the dope just finishes the 
job.  C. Biederman shared that her daughter just graduated and is a clean, productive member of 
society, focusing on giving versus taking. She talked about the positive connections she made 
during the Citizens’ Engagement Academy from which she graduated earlier in the evening. She 
expressed appreciation for all that the City does and for the life-changing experience of the 
Academy. 
 
Jomo Stewart, President/CEO of the Fairbanks Economic Development Corporation (FEDC) – J. 
Stewart spoke to a couple of great events/successes at the FEDC. He shared that they just 
concluded the annual Young Professionals Council (YPC) summit, which gives a voice to young 
people in the community, and recently concluded the third cohort small business accelerator, which 
doubled in participation this year over last year. He stated that the focus is on branding, 
bookkeeping, etc. He stated that they just had their annual pitch competition, with finalists 
presenting at the Chamber luncheon the following day. He discussed strategic planning efforts at 
the FEDC and shared that they just approved and adopted a plan; he stated they are discussing how 
to achieve goals. On personal note, J. Stewart shared that it does not take much to be knocked off 
one’s pedestal.  
 
Ms. Rogers asked if the FEDC mentoring program is still active. J. Stewart stated that the direct, 
structured mentoring approach ended about five years ago. He explained that a recent focus has 
been on the YPC summit, where young professionals get to meet established, successful people 
from across the community to learn valuable lessons from their experiences for professional and 
personal development. Ms. Rogers asked if they are interested in continuing with the mentoring 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 5 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 19 

program and offered her support. J. Stewart shared about the history of the YPC. He stated that a 
comparable program was started in Anchorage after the success of the Fairbanks group was shared. 
He shared that the local program has waned over the years, while Anchorage’s program has 
thrived. He stated he would accept Ms. Roger’s help to get it restarted. 
 
Mr. Cleworth asked J. Stewart if he had been approached by any major retailers interested in 
coming to Fairbanks. J. Stewart replied that he had not. Mr. Cleworth asked if the FEDC makes 
inquiries to see if companies are interested in doing so. J. Stewart replied that he had a recent 
conversation with a technology purveyor regarding licensing a piece of technology companies use 
to determine if they are interested in an area. He stated that Fairbanks has a hard time catching a 
break and discussed some of the challenges Fairbanks has faced in trying to grow its population 
and economy, including air quality issues and other issues that make it difficult for big name 
companies to consider Fairbanks as a location. J. Steward shared that part of FEDC’s strategic 
planning is determining whether to acquire resources to attract those kinds of businesses or the 
personnel/resources to do the work of clearing space for new development. Mr. Cleworth stated 
there is good opportunity in Fairbanks, and the numbers that Fred Meyer and Wal-Mart generates, 
compared to national averages, is staggering. J. Stewart stated that it is not the gross, it is the net. 
 
Ms. Rogers commented that North Pole was selected as a location for a new Three Bears store; 
she asked J. Stewart whether the company considered Fairbanks. J. Stewart replied that the 
company was actively courted by the Mayor of North Pole, which is a successful recruitment story 
for economic development. 
 
Hearing no more requests for comment, Mayor Pruhs declared Citizens’ Comments closed. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Ms. Sprinkle, seconded by Mr. Ringstad, moved to APPROVE the Agenda and Consent Agenda. 
 
Mr. Cleworth pulled Ordinance No. 6246 and the Memorandum Regarding City Representation 
on the FNSB Planning Commission from the Consent Agenda. 
 

Mayor Pruhs called for objection to the APPROVAL of the 
Agenda, as Amended and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 

 
City Clerk Snider read the Consent Agenda, as Amended, into the record. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
a) Regular Meeting Minutes of April 24, 2023 

 
  APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 

 
b) Regular Meeting Minutes of May 8, 2023 
 
  APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA.  

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 6 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 19 

SPECIAL ORDERS 
 
a) The Fairbanks City Council heard interested citizens concerned with the following Liquor 

License application for renewal: 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Marney, seconded by Mr. Ringstad, moved to WAIVE PROTEST on the Liquor License 
application for renewal. 
 
Mayor Pruhs called for testimony and hearing none, declared Public Testimony closed. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO WAIVE PROTEST ON THE 
LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  YEAS:  Cleworth, Marney, Tidwell, Ringstad, Sprinkle, Rogers 
  NAYS: None 
  Mayor Pruhs declared the MOTION CARRIED. 
 
MAYOR’S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
Mayor Pruhs asked Brenda McFarlane, Brynn Butler, and Marsha Oss to give a report on the 
recent Symposium on Opioids event. 
 
B. McFarlane shared information about the general purpose of the Symposium, its supporters, the 
wide range of contributors, and the overall result of the week’s efforts. 
 
B. Butler discussed the scope of attendees as well as the supporters who are helping contribute to 
the changes needed in the community for those struggling with issues. 
 
M. Oss discussed the theme of sharing resources and breaking down silos and using deliberately 
designed panels to represent different agencies in the community. She shared that the final day 
included a community awards ceremony and shared that she wanted to recognize regular people 
working every day to keep the community clean. M. Oss shared a slideshow that was presented at 
the awards ceremony. 
 
Ms. Sprinkle asked M. Oss to share about the art project she heard they were working on. M. Oss 
stated that as part of ‘The Opioid Project,’ twelve local individuals got together with some of the 
visiting contributors to create an art installation and share stories about how people in our 
community have been affected by opioid use. 
 
Mayor Pruhs asked Aaron Lojewski to give a report from the FNSB Assembly. 
 
A. Lojewski shared that the budget was recently passed by the Assembly and spoke about the 
history of budget challenges, debt payments, shortages, etc. at the Borough. He stated that, for a 
time, it was relatively easy to get State funding for additional requests, but funding dried up in 

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Address 

5262 Aha Oriental Kitchen Restaurant/ Eating Place Moonstone, LLC 996 Blair Road 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 7 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 19 

recent years and, as a result, the FNSB started its Capital Improvement Fund to set aside money 
each year to pay down debt while cash flowing capital requirements. He stated he was pleased to 
report that during his time on the Assembly, bond payments have dropped from approximately 
$19 MM to $10 MM. He stated that the amount will continue to drop and, unless additional bonds 
are issued, the Borough is on track to be debt-free by 2027. A. Lojewski stated that the items that 
made headlines were funding for the Mary Siah Recreation Center and FNSB School District 
(FNSBSD). He spoke about the consideration of school district funding and reported that the 
district will receive $7.2 MM more than what it budgeted in the coming year, largely due to an 
increase in the Base Student Allocation (BSA) from the State. A. Lojewski shared that the Mary 
Siah pool will remain open unless there is an HR crisis for lifeguard recruiting. He stated that some 
cuts were made to lifeguard positions that were vacant for quite some time, but the facility can 
continue to operate as it has been; he added that if demand increases, positions can be added back 
later and services and hours can expand. He expressed some concern about whether the 
Memorandum Regarding City Representation on the FNSB Planning Commission had been run 
through the Borough’s Legal Department, as he felt there might be some technical issues.  
 
Mr. Cleworth thanked A. Lojewski for his report and stated that the news on reduced bond debt 
is positive. He asked A. Lojewski to confirm if the State honored any commitments for assistance 
on repayment of certain bonds. A. Lojewski explained that the State had informally agreed to pay 
up to 90% of school bond debt reimbursement, but because it was an unofficial commitment, the 
amount has varied each year. He stated that it was never zero, but some years it would be low, 
resulting in an increase to the Borough’s mill rate. Mr. Cleworth asked A. Lojewski if he knows 
of any bond packages coming from either the Borough or the FNSBSD. A. Lojeswski stated that 
his understanding is that bond packages cannot come directly from the school district – they must 
be initiated by the Borough, placed on the ballot by the Assembly, and voted on by citizens. He 
stated that, to his knowledge, there are no bond packages being considered.  
 
Mayor Pruhs recounted a previous meeting where a citizen criticized the City regarding needles 
on the ground in his neighborhood and talked about his inability to reach the Mayor’s Office. He 
stated that Jessica Krier from the Mayor’s Office spoke with the citizen on the phone the same day 
he called and that Dispatch Manager Kristi Merideth also spent 15 minutes speaking with him. 
Mayor Pruhs shared that he attended Senior Recognition Day at the Carlson Center recently, and 
someone approached regarding appreciation for the Discretionary Fund grant they had received. 
He reported that he did a walkthrough at the Golden Heart Plaza (GHP) recently and saw needles 
firsthand, but when he returned later the needles were gone. He thanked Shawn Lee for being 
diligent and taking care of the issue. He affirmed that the City takes care of issues when the 
problems are communicated, and he expressed that he appreciates when that is done in a polite 
way. He asked City Engineer Bob Pristash to provide an update on the demolition of the Polaris 
Building. 
 
B. Pristash reported that traffic control for demolition was set up on Saturday and seems to be 
working. He discussed various disposal methods for certain materials and reported that about one-
third of the annex is down after only a day and a half. He shared that the contractor’s latest schedule 
indicates completion by May 27. B. Pristash stated that the carrier for hauling hazardous materials 
(hazmat) out of state was US Ecology but had to be switched to Waste Management, causing a 
delay. He stated that it will take months for the materials to reach the final destination. He stated 
that they are monitoring air quality and testing for asbestos and mold. 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 8 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 19 

 
Ms. Sprinkle asked about the traffic control component and the impact on local businesses. B. 
Pristash stated that he met with business owners and answered all questions to their satisfaction.  
 
Mr. Ringstad noted the reported progress on the annex and asked about the timeframe for 
demolition of the primary structure. B. Pristash responded with more details on the logistics of 
hazmat removal that he has seen during demolition of the annex and how that is helping eliminate 
misunderstandings during this process of advertising for the request for proposals (RFP).  
 
Mayor Pruhs reported on the $3 MM request to the State for funding through the capital budget. 
He shared that he received a round of positive calls from various legislators who are thrilled for 
Fairbanks, and he stated that Fairbanks has earned it. He stated that the City Grants Administrator 
will not be bored due to the number of grants the City is seeking. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Cleworth thanked the City Clerk for the Citizen Engagement Academy and noted its success. 
He thanked the Mayor for his work in Juneau to get funding for the Polaris Building. 
 
Ms. Rogers thanked the Clerk for the Academy and noted all the positive comments that came 
from those who participated. She shared that the Symposium was wonderful beyond words and 
she commended B. Butler, M. Oss, and B. McFarlane for their work. She expressed confidence 
that those who contributed financially were pleased with the result and will have no reservation 
about renewing their support. She also thanked the large group of others at City Hall who helped 
with the event and stated that she looks forward to attending next year.  
 
Ms. Sprinkle stated she had no comments. 
 
Mr. Ringstad shared his intention to introduce an ordinance at the next meeting regarding the 
FEDC’s funding from room rental tax revenue, which was removed from the ordinance before the 
Council.  
 
Mr. Marney thanked J. Stewart for his report and stated that he would like to see him more often. 
He thanked A. Lojewski for the Assembly report and thanked the Clerk and Department Heads for 
putting on the Academy. 
 
Ms. Tidwell shared information on the Interior Alaska Transportation Plan Road Show. She 
reported that Fairbanks is scheduled for the coming Wednesday at 5 p.m. at the Pipeline Training 
Center, and there will be an opportunity for the public to share ideas. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
a) Ordinance No. 6223, as Amended – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code 

Chapter 74, Article V, Room Rental Tax, to Change the Allocations.  Introduced by 
Council Members Marney, Tidwell, and Ringstad.  POSTPONED from the Regular 
Meeting of May 8, 2023; a PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE HELD.  

 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 9 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 19 

Note: Multiple proposals for amendments to Ordinance No. 6223, as Amended were 
included in writing in the agenda packet. A summary of those proposals is as follows: 

 
• From Ms. Tidwell: Excess funds, post-allocation, would be equally distributed 

between the City and Explore Fairbanks. 
• From Mr. Ringstad: Change 30% City allocation for fund collection, 

administration, and tourism impact to 23% AND allow City to retain 7% to offset 
expense of security and safety for special events. 

• From Ms. Sprinkle: Change all allocations to a percentage-based distribution and 
remove requirement to review allocations every 5 years. 

 
Scott McCrea, President/CEO of Explore Fairbanks – S. McCrea stated he spent a lot of time 
working on his remarks and that it is difficult to choose what to say when it feels as though 
everything has been spoken about many times. He indicated that the goal of conversation has been 
achieved. He affirmed his understanding of the purpose of the room rental tax and stated that 
tourism is the community leader when it comes to economic development when defined in terms 
of new money coming into the area, job creation, and businesses development. He spoke about the 
relevancy of destination marketing as it pertains to the work of Explore Fairbanks and about the 
increasingly competitive global market. S. McCrea stated that no one disagrees about the 
importance of Explore Fairbanks and its efforts, yet an ordinance may now potentially change 
what has been in place for over 20 years. He stated that Explore Fairbanks’ stance on the ordinance 
as currently written is in strong opposition as they do not want to see their funding capped. He 
questioned why Explore Fairbanks’ funding should be frozen when it is the primary entity 
responsible for bringing visitors to Fairbanks to contribute to that revenue. S. McCrea commented 
that capping their revenue as they deal with inflationary impacts would be equivalent to a budget 
reduction in years to come and would inhibit their ability to grow tourism. In regard to the various 
proposals before the Council, he spoke in full support of the language put forth by Ms. Sprinkle. 
He stated that Ms. Tidwell’s proposal would remove the cap, which is appreciated, but he 
questioned the need to split the difference above the $2.2 MM level with the City when the City is 
already getting an increased allocation. He presumed that the City would use the extra funds for 
general services, which he stated is against the purpose of the room rental tax, but he acknowledged 
that it would still allow some opportunity for growth. He expressed hope that the Council’s action 
would reflect the words of confidence that have been conveyed in regard to Explore Fairbanks and 
that there would be a conclusion to the ordinance.  
 
Kathy Fitzgerald, Chena Hot Springs Road – K. Fitzgerald stated that she spent many years on 
different sides of the table, as a member of organizations requesting funding and as a member of 
the committee allocating funds. She discussed the history of the ordinance and the development of 
winter tourism and spoke about the value of the travel brochure Fairbanks Convention & Visitors 
Bureau produces. She stated that the brochure entices people to visit Fairbanks and indicated that 
a reduction to that allocation would have a negative impact. She stated she does not want Fairbanks 
to be viewed as a bait-and-switch community. K. Fitzgerald spoke briefly about the history of the 
barricade package and of her involvement in its origin. She stated that the difference between what 
is charged for special event barricade packages versus the actual cost to provide the service is 
about $6,000. She stated that the difference was covered through discretionary funds, and she is 
not in favor of the ordinance as it is written. She stated that there are a lot of good revisions being 
offered, and she spoke in favor of splitting the excess to help with special events. She indicated 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 10 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 19 

that her only concern would be with the timing for the Discretionary Fund Committee to receive 
updated amounts in order to make recommendations for allocations.  
 
Ms. Sprinkle asked K. Fitzgerald how she felt about the barricade package. K. Fitzgerald stated 
she is unsure of the current proposal but that she believes it behooves the City to provide the 
barricade package services. She stated the City has expertise, and it would help reduce liability.  
 
Aaron Lojewski – A. Lojewski thanked Mr. Cleworth for his parliamentary maneuver at the last 
meeting to ensure Ms. Sprinkle was able to participate in the discussion of the ordinance, thus 
allowing all voices on the Council to be represented [referring to action taken to remove 
component that would have presented a conflict of interest for her]. He stated he is particularly 
grateful for that action because he believes Ms. Sprinkle’s proposal is the best solution to fix some 
issues with the allocations in the Code, such as no adjustments for inflation for the last 20 years. 
He expressed hope that the Council would seriously consider passing Ms. Sprinkle’s proposed 
language.  
 
Leonard Thiltgen, 2263 Bridgewater Drive, Fairbanks – L. Thiltgen stated that he ran a retail 
business for 40 years, and the number of non-local visitors he received was pretty minimal. He 
spoke about a room surcharge being implemented in other cities for each night a room is rented.  
He stated he was surprised to hear a couple recently state that they did not go out much anymore 
in the evenings because they did not feel safe, and he wondered why there could not be a room 
surcharge implemented in Fairbanks to go directly towards public safety; he added that everyone 
would benefit from the surcharge, rather than just those who cater to visitors. He stated that there 
are many retirees choosing to stay in Fairbanks year-round, and he questioned what benefits those 
individuals get from the room rental tax. He spoke in favor of a surcharge or other out-of-the-box 
solutions so that all community members benefit from visitors, not just the visitor industry.  
 
Elizabeth Griswold (via Zoom) – E. Griswold shared that the reason there are not more leaders 
from the visitors industry in the audience is because many of them are at a conference in Texas, as 
she is, to sell Fairbanks as a destination. She stated she has reviewed some of the proposals, and 
she appreciates Ms. Sprinkle’s language. She urged the Council not to cap Explore Fairbanks’ 
funding, as they work hard to advocate for Fairbanks; she cautioned not to ‘shoot the horse that’s 
pulling the cart.’ E. Griswold stated that occupancy levels and room rates have gone up, but 
tourism costs have also increased. She requested a fair and equitable solution to the ordinance and 
stated that she also wants the city to be safe without capping Explore Fairbanks’ funding. She 
thanked the Council for its efforts and expressed her hope to see an increase in the funding that 
benefits the most people. She asked the Council to show visitor industry partners that it believes 
in them by not capping the City’s support, so everyone can grow, prosper, and work together. 
 
Mayor Pruhs called for additional public comment and hearing none, declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
Mr. Marney expressed his belief that Mr. Ringstad’s proposed language to divide 30% into 23% 
and 7%, takes care of some issues. He stated that 7% would go towards public safety, which many 
citizens would like to see the City address. He stated that Ms. Tidwell’s proposed language shows 
that a willingness to work with Explore Fairbanks. Mayor Pruhs asked if Mr. Marney would like 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 11 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 19 

to make a motion. Mr. Marney stated that he likes the idea of combining Ms. Tidwell and Mr. 
Ringstad’s proposals.  
 
Mr. Marney, seconded by Ms. Tidwell, moved to AMEND Ordinance No. 6223, as Amended, 
as follows [new text in bold/double-underlined font; deleted text in double-strikethrough font]: 
 
Sec. 74-117. Room rental tax purpose and limitation. 
 
  (b) Subject to annual appropriation, revenues collected under this article will be allocated 
as follows: 

(1)  The City of Fairbanks will retainreceive 233022.5 percent and any 
remaining room rental tax revenues for fund collection, administration, 
and tourism impact.   

(2) Additionally, the City of Fairbanks will retain 7 percent to help offset 
its expenses for providing security and safety for special events as well 
as for other services in support of the intent of this section. 

(32) $550,000.00400,000.00 will be distributed annually as follows:   
Fairbanks Economic Development Corporation $100,000.00 
Golden Heart Plaza and Barnette Landing Maintenance $50,000.0030,000.00 
Discretionary Grants  $400,000.00270,000.00 

(43) Up to $2.2 millionAll remaining room rental tax revenues will be 
distributed to the Fairbanks Convention and Visitors Bureau, dba Explore 
Fairbanks (hereinafter “Explore Fairbanks”).   

(5) Any room rental tax revenues remaining after these allocations are 
made will be distributed equally between the City of Fairbanks and 
Explore Fairbanks. 

(64) The allocations under this section will be reviewed by the city council 
at least once every five years. 

 
Ms. Sprinkle stated she understands the need for the discussion, but she pointed out that Explore 
Fairbanks is essentially the City’s public relations firm. She indicated that she is against a provision 
that would cause allocations to become stagnant and that the City taking 30% plus the split in 
excess funds makes it look greedy.  
 
Ms. Rogers stated that she could not support the proposed amendment. 
 
Mr. Ringstad acknowledged the complexity of the issue and spoke to the challenges of the Open 
Meetings Act (OMA) in trying to work with other Council members. He stated that the discussion 
surrounding the ordinance has evolved many times, and the amendment before the Council is the 
result of a compromise and indicates progress. He stated that there is no cap for Explore Fairbanks 
with the amendment, and, as revenue increases, Explore Fairbanks will benefit along with the City. 
He indicated that it is not perfect, but it is workable and it moves things forward. Mr. Ringstad 
spoke about an insert in the newspaper regarding visiting Fairbanks, and after he inquired, he 
learned that the insert was being distributed elsewhere in the state. He stated that there are others 
out there who are spending money to market the Interior. He expressed appreciation for the work 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 12 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 10 of 19 

everyone put into the ordinance and stated that, like other aspects of the budget, things change 
more frequently than every 20 years. He stated the issue is worth looking at again in the future.  
 
Mr. Cleworth thanked those Council members who considered his recommendations from the 
last meeting. He stated that much of what he mentioned has been addressed with the amendment, 
although it does not take care of everything he spoke about. He stated he received an email recently 
stating that the Council needs to wrap this issue up, and he agreed. 
 
Mr. Marney asked CFO Bell whether an organization that receives discretionary fund monies can 
request additional funds through the Mayor. CFO Bell replied that an organization can approach 
the Mayor to ask if he would consider a request through his contingency fund; she stated the Mayor 
has the authority to grant such a request, but if it would exceed his budget, he could request a 
budget amendment. Mayor Pruhs added that the Council can do that as well. Ms. Rogers added 
to the question to confirm that the application for discretionary fund grants does not make it clear 
that this is an option. CFO Bell confirmed that Ms. Rogers’ was correct.   
 
Ms. Tidwell state she appreciates being part of the process and indicated support for removing the 
funding cap for Explore Fairbanks. She stated the Council has heard from many within the tourism 
industry, and she has heard from many members of the community as well. She commented that 
an important part of tourism is having a safe community and that looking at ways to have increased 
safety downtown has been a serious issue. She stated that all solutions require money and that she 
feels that taking care of those who live in the community is more important than marketing tourism; 
she stated the amendment provides for both. Ms. Tidwell stated that Explore Fairbanks will have 
the ability to continue to grow, and the City will be able to start solving some of its problems, as 
recently highlighted. She expressed hope that the amendment passes. 
 
Ms. Rogers stated she has spoken on many occasions over the years about people’s perception of 
downtown Fairbanks. She stated she does not feel that there should be a tie between funding for 
economic development and safety of the community and that some of these issues are not being 
employed in ways that are useful. She stated that those are two different things. In regard to 
compromises, she expressed disagreement with the idea that if both sides disagree a little about 
certain aspects, and the result is somewhere in the middle, that that is a sign of a good decision. 
Ms. Rogers stated she does not feel she can hear that kind of a comment and agree that there is a 
good energy to the spirit of discussion, if relying on that view. She stated she has been frustrated 
over the years about circumstances of attitude about the Fairbanks community and the perception 
that downtown Fairbanks has been abandoned. She stated that there was an agreement in place for 
room rental allocations, but early in the Council’s discussion of the ordinance, she felt there was a 
sense of breaking that agreement. She stated she finds it difficult to support any of the proposals. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 6223, 
AS AMENDED, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
YEAS:  Marney, Ringstad, Cleworth, Tidwell 
NAYS:  Sprinkle, Rogers  
Mayor Pruhs declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 13 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 11 of 19 

Mr. Cleworth, seconded by Mr. Ringstad, moved to AMEND Ordinance No. 6223, as Amended, 
by striking the language in item 6 [Sec. 74-117(b)(6)]: “The allocations under this section will be 
reviewed by the city council at least once every five years.”  
 
Mr. Cleworth stated that the Fairbanks General Code (FGC) can be revised at any time by 
ordinance. He stated that the allocations may be reviewed in that timeframe or they may be 
forgotten, but ultimately the language is unnecessary. 
 
Mr. Ringstad acknowledged Mr. Cleworth’s the point but reminded the Council that the section 
of the code had not been reviewed for many years. He spoke in support of keeping the language. 
Mr. Marney agreed. 
 
Ms. Sprinkle expressed disappointment that there would be flat funding again and, in time, they 
will be back where they started from. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 6223, 
AS AMENDED, BY STRIKING THE LANGUAGE IN ITEM 6 AS FOLLOWS: 

 
YEAS:  Tidwell, Sprinkle, Rogers, Cleworth  
NAYS:  Ringstad, Marney 
Mayor Pruhs declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
Mayor Pruhs called for any additional amendments and, hearing none, called for a vote on 
Ordinance No. 6223, as Amended. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 6223, 
AS AMENDED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Ringstad, Marney, Cleworth, Tidwell  
NAYS:  Rogers, Sprinkle 
Mayor Pruhs declared the MOTION CARRIED and Ordinance 
No. 6223, as Amended, ADOPTED. 

 
b) Ordinance No. 6238, as Amended – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code Sec. 

78-572 Special Events by Amending the City Barricade Package Fee and Establishing a 
Deadline for Permit Applications.  Introduced by Mayor Pruhs.  POSTPONED from the 
Regular Meeting of April 10, 2023; a public hearing was held on March 27, 2023. 

 
Mayor Pruhs noted that a motion to adopt was already on the floor and no public hearing was 
scheduled. He called for Council discussion.  
 
Mr. Cleworth, seconded by Ms. Tidwell, moved to AMEND Ordinance No. 6238, as Amended, 
by reducing the barricade package fee from $3,000 to $1,000. 
 
Mr. Cleworth stated that, with the Council’s change to Ordinance No. 6223, as Amended, there 
would be no reason to raise the barricade package fee and that the amount of revenue it would 
generate is miniscule.  

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 14 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 12 of 19 

 
Ms. Tidwell agreed with Mr. Cleworth. She added that the barricade package is an important 
service that the City provides and that she supports keeping costs low so as not to hurt the 
organizations putting on special events.  
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 6238, 
AS AMENDED, BY REDUCING THE BARRICADE PACKAGE FEE FROM $3,000 TO 
$1,000, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Cleworth, Marney, Ringstad, Sprinkle, Rogers, Tidwell 
NAYS:  None 

 Mayor Pruhs declared the MOTION CARRIED. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 6238, 
AS AMENDED, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Tidwell, Cleworth, Marney, Ringstad, Sprinkle, Rogers 
NAYS: None 
Mayor Pruhs declared the MOTION CARRIED and Ordinance 
No. 6223, as Amended, ADOPTED. 

 
c) Ordinance No. 6244 – An Ordinance Authorizing and Directing Retention of the Real 

Property Located at 730 Front Street for Public Purpose Upon Tax Foreclosure.  Introduced 
by Mayor Pruhs and Council Member Sprinkle.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC 
HEARING. 

 
Ms. Sprinkle, seconded by Mr. Marney, moved to ADOPT Ordinance No. 6244. 
 
Mayor Pruhs called for public testimony. 
 
David van den Berg, Executive Director of the Downtown Association (DTA) of Fairbanks – D. 
van den Berg stated that he is speaking on behalf of the DTA and that, although the subject property 
is outside of the primary downtown area, they understand this can be an agonizing decision in 
some instances. He recognized that if staff has brought the matter to this point, it is likely a good 
recommendation and the DTA lends its support.  
 
Mayor Pruhs called for any additional testimony and, hearing none, declared Public Testimony 
closed. 
 
Ms. Sprinkle stated that she does not like that the money will come out of the Mayor’s contingency 
fund. She asked if the Council can, in the near future, hear from the Building Official about 
abatement funds. Mayor Pruhs stated that he will be working with staff to start the process and 
has meeting already scheduled to discuss priorities; he stated he would report back to the Council. 
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 6244 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 15 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 13 of 19 

YEAS:  Ringstad, Tidwell, Rogers, Sprinkle, Marney, Cleworth 
NAYS:  None 
Mayor Pruhs declared the MOTION CARRIED and Ordinance 
No. 6244 ADOPTED. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
a) Resolution No. 5065 – A Resolution Authorizing the City of Fairbanks to Apply for Funds 

from the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority for a Community Paramedic Program.  
Introduced by Mayor Pruhs.   
 

PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA 
 

b) Resolution No. 5066 – A Resolution Honoring the Fort Wainwright Soldiers Who Lost 
Their Lives on April 27, 2023.  Introduced by Mayor Pruhs and All City Council Members. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA 

 
c) Ordinance No. 6245 – An Ordinance Amending the City of Fairbanks 2023 Operating and 

Capital Budgets for the Second Time.  Introduced by Mayor Pruhs.  
 

ADVANCED on the CONSENT AGENDA 
 

d) Ordinance No. 6246 – An Ordinance to Reduce Overtime at the Fairbanks Fire Department 
and Secure Additional Savings and Benefits by Adding a Battalion Chief.  Introduced by 
Council Member Tidwell. 

 
Ms. Sprinkle, seconded by Ms. Tidwell, moved to ADVANCE Ordinance No. 6246. 
 
Mr. Cleworth asked for clarification that the plan, as it pertains to the 2024 budget, is to add a 
full-time Battalion Chief, which would entail an internal promotion, then hiring to fill the position 
that individual vacated. Assistant Fire Chief A. Coccaro replied that, to the best of his 
understanding, that is correct. Mr. Cleworth asked for clarification on other Fire Department 
staffing items presented in the budget amendment that was just advanced. A. Coccaro stated that 
they are two separate issues. He explained the positions referenced within Ordinance No. 6245. 
Mr. Cleworth expressed confusion and asked for confirmation that the Fire Chief and Asst. Fire 
Chief positions are with the IBEW. A. Coccaro replied affirmatively. Mr. Cleworth sated that a 
Battalion Chief is currently acting as a Deputy Fire Marshal and asked whether that position is a 
Fairbanks Firefighters Union (FFU) position or an IBEW position. A. Coccaro confirmed that it is 
a FFU position. Mr. Cleworth stated that he is not currently in favor of adding more people in the 
Fire Department. He indicated that the Council has had discussions during budget season regarding 
the Deputy Fire Marshal position, and he stated that doing inspections is very important for places 
with liquor licenses, restaurants, hotels, etc., because people rely on the safety of the facility. He 
stated that doing inspections for other businesses with typical daytime hours and with no one living 
there is of little importance to him. Mr. Cleworth stated that in the past, inspections would occur 
whether the business owner wanted them or not, then the business owner would receive a bill. He 
stated that some questioned why their taxes did not cover that kind of thing, and there was not a 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 16 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 14 of 19 

good answer. Mr. Cleworth stated that a real discussion is needed about the position if it will be 
added at all. He stated that four new positions were added to the Fire Department a year and a half 
ago, and the minimum manning was also increased, which had an impact on overtime. He asked 
Mayor Pruhs whether the administration supports Ordinance No. 6246. Mayor Pruhs stated that, 
at this time, he is going to say yes, but he had hoped the discussion would be brought forth later in 
June or July after police staffing issues are addressed. He stated that this is one position they can 
add now at the Fire Department to bring down costs. Mr. Cleworth questioned the Mayor 
regarding his statement about reducing cost when the fiscal note shows an increased cost, despite 
the ordinance title claiming to bring down cost. Mayor Pruhs stated that what is not seen is the 
offset by reduction in overtime costs. Mr. Cleworth pointed out that the fiscal note includes the 
overtime cost. Mayor Pruhs noted a $55,000 savings in overtime expenses but a payroll increase 
of $112,000, and he stated that that is not good. 
 
Ms. Tidwell stated that she believes the cost will very much depends on how the Fire Chief decides 
to use the position and that the numbers are not concrete.  
 
Chief Raygor stated that he was very conservative with the overtime hours he used for the fiscal 
note by only including the ‘forced hours.’ He stated he believes the savings will be a lot higher, 
but he cannot predict based on unknowns, as it is a position they have never had before. He gave 
some example scenarios and explained that the CBA also comes into play. He reiterated that in his 
work with CFO Bell, he was very conservative with his estimates for the number of hours of 
overtime that will be reduced with the addition of the position.  
 
Mr. Marney thanked Ms. Tidwell for getting the subject introduced sooner rather than later. He 
indicated that the Council is aware that the overtime is far higher than it should be, and he believes 
that more time could be spent looking into the financials in a future work session if the ordinance 
advances. 
 
Mr. Ringstad stated he does not feel educated enough to discuss the duties of a Fire Marshal or a 
Battalion Chief or how much it will cost to make the change happen. He stated that although, 
philosophically, he appreciates the thought of departments trying to get overtime under control, he 
feels like he has some homework to do in order to feel qualified to vote on such a matter. 
 
Ms. Tidwell asked for verification that should the ordinance advance, a work session would be 
held to review details. Mayor Pruhs confirmed that if the ordinance was advanced, it would be 
included in the next work session, with a final discussion at the next regular City Council meeting. 
He repeated that he would like to have seen the ordinance come forward in July, in order to first 
focus on matters pertaining to the Police Department. 
 
Mr. Ringstad asked if it would make more sense to focus on Police Department matters within 
the next 60 days, rather than advance the Fire Department ordinance to be concluded within the 
next 30 days. Mayor Pruhs stated that is up to the Council.  
 
Ms. Rogers stated that she feels it would be wise to postpone. Mayor Pruhs suggested postponing 
the ordinance to the second meeting in July. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 17 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 15 of 19 

Clerk Snider asked to clarify if the intent was to postpone or to amend the current motion to 
advance to an alternative date rather than the next meeting.  
 
Mayor Pruhs, seconded by Mr. Ringstad, moved to AMEND the motion to ADVANCE 
Ordinance No. 6246 by changing the date of Second Reading and Public Hearing to the second 
meeting in July, rather than June 12, 2023. 
 

Mayor Pruhs called for objection and, hearing none, declared the 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO ADVANCE ORDINANCE NO. 
6246 TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 24, 2023, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

YEAS:  Sprinkle, Rogers, Marney, Ringstad 
NAYS: Cleworth, Tidwell 
Mayor Pruhs declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
e) Ordinance No. 6247 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code Sec. 2-233(c) to 

Change the Quorum Requirement for the Fairbanks Diversity Council.  Introduced by 
Mayor Pruhs and Council Member Rogers.   

   
ADVANCED on the CONSENT AGENDA 

 
f) Ordinance No. 6248 – An Ordinance Amending the Incentive Bonus Program with the 

Fairbanks Police Department for Recruitment and Hiring.  Introduced by Mayor Pruhs.   
 

ADVANCED on the CONSENT AGENDA 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS (Information and Reports) 
 
a) Committee Reports 
 
Ms. Tidwell stated she attended a recent Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) meeting for 
the highway corridor project. She shared that the next meeting set for July. She commented that 
there have been significant improvements to their website, and the best avenue for public comment 
is through the website; she added that those communications are shared at committee meetings.  
 
Ms. Sprinkle shared that the Chena Riverfront Commission meeting will occur on Wednesday. 
She commented that she is anxious for the Finance Committee meeting as those meetings are very 
interesting and informative; she stated she is learning a lot about the City’s financial picture. She 
expressed an interest in more discussion on the City’s tobacco tax. 
 
Ms. Rogers reported that the Fairbanks Diversity Council (FDC) recently met, but she was 
disappointed that there was not a quorum. She stated she is glad to see a new application for that 
committee, and she also reported that someone who attended a recent FDC meeting intends to 
submit an application. She stated that should help the group make quorum on a regular basis. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 18 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 16 of 19 

 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
a) Appointment to the Fairbanks Diversity Council 

  
  APPROVED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 

 
b) Memorandum Regarding City Representation on the FNSB Planning Commission 
 
Ms. Sprinkle, seconded by Ms. Rogers, moved to APPROVE the Memorandum Regarding City 
Representation on the FNSB Planning Commission. 
 
Mayor Pruhs explained that there was an issue with the Borough regarding City representation 
on the Planning Commission. He stated an attempt was made to move Ms. Tidwell into a vacant 
City-represented seat while simultaneously not accepting the recommendation for appointment 
that the City had made for that vacant seat. Mayor Pruhs stated that he met with FNSB Mayor 
Ward and Borough Attorney Jill Dolan and, in summary, the Borough was in error. He stated that 
the City should have a fourth seat on the Commission based on updated population statistics 
 
Ms. Tidwell clarified that the Borough’s error was appointing her to a Borough seat. She explained 
that her application included her city address, and the seat she was placed in two years ago was a 
Borough seat, which is not allowed for a city resident. Ms. Tidwell explained that there was an 
open seat on the Commission designated for City representation, and the Council approved the 
recommendation of a certain individual. She stated that, during that process, the Borough realized 
the discrepancy with her seat and the residency requirement. She stated that the Borough was going 
to accept the Council’s recommendation for the other individual to take the City seat and ‘fire’ 
Ms. Tidwell. She expressed her wish to remain on the Commission and stated that this action will 
ensure she is moved to the vacant City seat while also allowing the recommendation for another 
seat to move forward. 
 
Mr. Cleworth indicated that he has a problem with the Borough’s solution, stating that it is not 
Ms. Tidwell’s problem and it is not the City’s problem. He stated that the issue should be rectified 
by the FNSB Assembly. He questioned whether the North Pole seat was currently vacant. Ms. 
Tidwell replied that, coincidentally, although the North Pole seat is currently vacant, it was 
discovered that there is another individual in a Borough seat who resides in the City of North Pole. 
She stated that that person will be moved from their current seat to the North Pole seat. 
 
Discussion occurred between Mr. Cleworth, Ms. Tidwell, and Mayor Pruhs to clarify the current 
situation. It was stated that the City of Fairbanks currently has two seats filled and that Aaron 
Gibson’s application was submitted to fill the third City seat. There was discussion that the 
Borough responded by declining Mr. Gibson’s appointment, opting to move Ms. Tidwell to that 
City-represented seat instead, which was not an acceptable solution. It was stated that the City 
should be given a fourth seat on the Planning Commission so that both Mr. Gibson and Ms. Tidwell 
could serve. Mr. Cleworth stated he believes this issue should be resolved by the Borough 
Assembly instead of the City Council.  
 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 19 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 17 of 19 

Mr. Ringstad questioned whether Ms. Tidwell’s term of service would change with a new seat 
placement. Mayor Pruhs stated that he could forward emails showing the terms for each of the 
seats being discussed. 
 
Mr. Marney agreed with Mr. Cleworth that the issue was caused by the Borough. 
 
Mayor Pruhs reiterated that he was not interested in an ‘opinion piece’ from the Borough attorney 
and that he wanted clear answers when he met with Mayor Ward and Borough Attorney Jill Dolan. 
Mr. Cleworth asked whether Mayor Pruhs had a commitment by the Borough Mayor to bring the 
issue forward to the Assembly. Mayor Pruhs replied affirmatively and spoke highly of Borough 
Attorney Dolan. He recalled working with her on the Planning Commission in 2006. He stated that 
the ideas for resolving this situation are a result of their discussion and Attorney Dolan’s 
suggestions. He stated that if things are not resolved the way they are outlined in the memorandum, 
it will be because of the Borough Mayor. 
 
Clerk Snider shared information to answer the question from Mr. Ringstad regarding term dates. 
She stated that Ms. Tidwell’s current term expires December 2024 and the vacant seat they are 
seeking to move her to has a term ending in December 2025.  
 
A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN ON THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE 
MEMORANDUM REGARDING CITY REPRESENTATION ON THE FNSB PLANNING 
COMMISSION AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 YEAS: Sprinkle, Cleworth, Ringstad, Marney, Rogers  

NAYS: None 
ABSTAINED: Tidwell 
Mayor Pruhs declared the MOTION CARRIED. 

 
c) Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes of January 10, 2023 
 
  ACCEPTED on the CONSENT AGENDA. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 
Mr. Cleworth noted that Peter Stern, a longtime member of the Fairbanks Fire Department, had 
recently passed away. He stated that Mr. Stern was a great asset to the community through years 
of continued contribution on various committees. Regarding a property on 5th Avenue next to Clay 
Street Cemetery, Mr. Cleworth stated that he was under the impression that a building without 
water service could not be occupied unless a building permit was issued. He questioned whether 
the building could be boarded up if people are coming and going. He asked if the City Attorney 
could research whether there is a public nuisance consideration that could be used to expedite the 
process of getting the structure secured, considering the number of complaints received about the 
property. 
 
Ms. Rogers expressed disappointment in not having the opportunity to support Ms. Sprinkle’s 
proposal for the room rental tax ordinance. She stated that the issue affects many programs, events, 
and organizations that are close to her experience growing up in Fairbanks, as well as those of 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 20 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 18 of 19 

many citizens. Ms. Rogers stated that money cannot be thrown at any problem that has to do with 
people while expecting the best results and that an attitude adjustment has to happen in the 
community. She stated that many people spoke about each other in uplifting ways throughout the 
entire evening. She recalled having to remind and educate people years ago about not using 
inappropriate terms in reference to others and stated that there needs to be an effort to rethink how 
people title and refer to others. Ms. Rogers stated that C. Biederman was very eloquent in how 
she spoke about people working together, especially after comments that preceded her. She stated 
that it is very heartening to see that kind of recognition for fellow humans, and that is the kind of 
expression of love and concern that she would like to see in the community. She spoke to the 
importance of working together, with good personal regard for one another, understanding the 
hurts that others are going through. She stated that dollars do not work the same way as people to 
solve problems.  
 
Ms. Sprinkle acknowledged all the efforts and results of the cleanup day held over the weekend. 
She stated that she loves seeing the results each year, and she encourage all Fairbanksans to 
continue that throughout the season.  
 
Ms. Tidwell thanked Ms. Rogers for her comments and acknowledged her frustrations. She stated 
that she believes it takes both dollars and people in the community working together to accomplish 
things. She expressed hope that some of the extra funding that will be received as a result of the 
Council’s actions will help with that.  
 
Mr. Marney thanked the Council for jumping the hurdle and passing Ordinance No. 6223.  
 
Mr. Ringstad stated that he had no comments. 
 
CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
Clerk Snider congratulated the graduates of the Citizens Engagement Academy. She also 
congratulated students who recently graduated high school.  She shared that the new Deputy City 
Clerk, Colt Chase, started his first day at the City and invited those present to stop by and meet 
him the next time they visit City Hall.  
 
CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
Attorney Chard stated he had nothing to report. 
 
Mr. Cleworth, seconded by Ms. Tidwell, moved to ENTER Executive Session to discuss 
Fairbanks Police Department Recruitment and Retention Benefit Options as well as the IBEW 
Labor Negotiation Strategy. 
 
Clerk Snider noted that Ms. Rogers would participate in the first Executive Session and excuse 
herself for the second.  
 
 Mayor Pruhs called for objection and, hearing none, so ORDERED. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 21 of 44



 

 

City of Fairbanks NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 22, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 19 of 19 

Mayor Pruhs called for a brief recess. The Council reconvened in Executive Session following 
the brief recess.   
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

a) Fairbanks Police Department Recruitment and Retention Benefit Options 
 

b) IBEW Labor Negotiation Strategy 
 
The City Council met in Executive Session to discuss these items. Direction was given, but no 
action was taken.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Ms. Tidwell, seconded by Ms. Sprinkle, moved to ADJOURN the meeting. 
 

Mayor Pruhs called for a voice vote on the motion to ADJOURN 
and, with all members voting in favor, so ORDERED. 

 
Mayor Pruhs declared the meeting adjourned at 10:28 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       DAVID PRUHS, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
D. DANYIELLE SNIDER, MMC, CITY CLERK 
 
Transcribed by:  CC/DS 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 22 of 44



CITY OF FAIRBANKS CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
____________________________________________ _____________________________________________ 

800 Cushman Street Telephone (907) 459-6702 

Fairbanks, AK  99701      Fax (907) 459-6710 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor Pruhs and City Council Members 

FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk

SUBJECT: Liquor License Renewals 

DATE:  June 21, 2023 

Notice has been received from the State Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) for the 

following liquor license renewal applications:   

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Address 

3965 
Republic National 

Distributing 

Wholesale – 

General 

K & L Beverage 

Company, LLC 
945 Elizabeth Street 

4504 Venue Fairbanks 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
Go Alaska Media, LLC 514 2nd Avenue 

4547 
Humble Roots Beer 

Project 

Beverage 

Dispensary 
Humble Roots, LLC 314 Wendell Avenue 

576 The CrowBar 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
Area 51 Properties, LLC 2712 Jessie Street 

Pursuant to FGC Sec. 14-178 the Council must determine whether to protest liquor license renewal 

applications after holding a public hearing.   

The Police Department has included a call report for the locations listed above, but there are no 

department-recommended protests for these liquor license renewal applications.   

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 23 of 44



Republic National Distributing

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 24 of 44



Venue Fairbanks

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 25 of 44



Humble Roots Beer Project

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 26 of 44



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

23000954 03/10/2023 03:23 SI - FIELD CONTACT 2712 JESSE ST O5 NRP 03/10/2023 03:37:41

02/11/2023 14:16 CIVIL PROBLEM 2712 JESSE ST O6 NRP 02/11/2023 16:01:07

23000520 02/05/2023 09:47 SUPPLEMENTAL- 2712 JESSE ST O28 RPT 02/05/2023 11:19:11

23000520 02/05/2023 04:17 ASSAULT - BRAVO 2712 JESSE ST O55 RPT 02/05/2023 07:13:34

12/21/2022 00:06 SI -VID 2712 JESSE ST O19 NRP 12/21/2022 00:18:57

12/20/2022 23:35 DISTURBANCE 2712 JESSE ST O19 NRP 12/21/2022 00:07:14

22004102 10/09/2022 03:05 ASSAULT - BRAVO 2712 JESSE ST O20 RPT 10/09/2022 04:02:28

09/27/2022 19:40 DISTURBANCE 2712 JESSE ST O10 NRP 09/27/2022 19:55:47

08/24/2022 21:52 REDDI 2712 JESSE ST O2 SUBL 08/24/2022 21:57:01

07/07/2022 18:23 SI - FOLLOW-UP 2712 JESSE ST L1 NRP 07/07/2022 18:24:54

22002710 07/06/2022 18:20 THEFT FROM 2712 JESSE ST L1 RPT 07/06/2022 19:03:52

22002704 07/06/2022 08:54 AOA - NON URGENT - 2712 JESSE ST O27 RPT 07/06/2022 10:05:01

Total Number of Events Listed: 12

CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY
Event List with Report Numbers

The Crowbar

Report Generated: 05/31/2023 10:24:53 | User ID: 1181

Page 1 of 1\\fecc-app\ossicad\cad\rpt\EventHistory_EventListWithReportNumbers
City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 27 of 44



 
Introduced by: Council Member Ringstad 

Permanent Fund Review Board: April 26, 2023 
Introduced: June 12, 2023 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 6249 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE SECTION 
2-260(c)(2) BY INCREASING THE EXPOSURE LIMIT ON BBB-RATED 
SECURITIES IN THE CITY PERMANENT FUND INVESTMENT POLICY  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council established the investment policy of the City 
Permanent Fund by terms codified in Fairbanks General Code Sections 2-260 and 2-
261; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s Permanent Fund Investment Manager, Alaska Permanent 
Capital Management (APCM), recommends that Section 2-260(c)(2) be amended to 
increase the exposure limit on BBB-rated securities from 15% to 20% to achieve the 
Permanent Fund goals of preserving principal and maintaining purchasing power; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Permanent Fund Review Board supports and recommends this 
increase to allow additional investments in BBB-rated securities when market conditions 
are conducive. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  Fairbanks General Code Section 2-260(c)(2) is hereby amended as 
follows [new text in bold/underline font; deleted text in strikethrough font]:  
 
Sec. 2-260. Permanent fund investment policy, procedure, and governance. 
 

* * * * * * * * 
 

(c) Limitations. The following investment practices are prohibited and shall constitute 
limitations to fund investments:  

 
* * * * * * * * 

 
(2) Investments in United States dollar denominated obligations of corporations 

shall be limited to a percentage level as provided for by the city council from 
time to time. Investment grade to be defined by at least one nationally 
recognized rating service. The investment in the lowest level of investment 
grade securities is to be limited to no more than 1520 percent of the 
marketable debt securities;  

 
SECTION 2.  That the effective date of this ordinance will be the 1st day of July 

2023.    
 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 28 of 44



 
 

 

Ordinance No. 6249 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
                                                                   
       David Pruhs, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                            
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk  Thomas A Chard II, City Attorney 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 29 of 44



Introduced by: Council Members 
Ringstad and Marney 
Date:  June 12, 2023 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6250 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE 
CHAPTER 74, ARTICLE V, ROOM RENTAL TAX, TO CHANGE 

THE ALLOCATION TO THE FAIRBANKS ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (FEDC) 

 
 WHEREAS, generally, the full participation of all council members in every 
decision before the council is ideal, however, there are times when a conflict of interest 
precludes a council member’s involvement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the city’s Code of Ethics at FGC Sec. 1-20 and 
other governing law, a council member declared a conflict of interest regarding a change 
to the allocation made to the Fairbanks Economic Development Corporation (FEDC) 
under proposed Ordinance No. 6223, and the Council’s presiding officer ruled that the 
council member did have a conflict of interest, and that ruling was not challenged; and   
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 6223, as Amended, adopted by the Council on May 
22, 2023, changed all room rental tax allocations in FGC Chapter 74 except, to avoid the 
council member’s conflict of interest, the allocation to the Fairbanks Economic 
Development Corporation (FEDC); and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is now the council’s intent to change the allocation to FEDC. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  FGC Sec. 74-117(b)(3) is amended as follows [new text in bold/underline 
font; deleted text in strikethrough font]: 
 

Sec. 74-117. Room rental tax purpose and limitation. 
 

* * * * * * * * 
  (b) Subject to annual appropriation, revenues collected under this article 
will be allocated as follows:   

 
(3) $600,000.00550,000.00 will be distributed annually as 

follows:   
Fairbanks Economic Development Corporation 
$150,000.00100,000.00 
Golden Heart Plaza and Barnette Landing Maintenance $50,000.00 
Discretionary Grants $400,000.00 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 30 of 44



Ordinance No. 6250 
Page 2 

 
Section 2.  That the effective date of this Ordinance is five days after adoption. 
 
Section 3.  The current distribution will remain in effect until December 31, 2023. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       David Pruhs, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk  Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 
 
  

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 31 of 44



Ordinance No. 6250 
Page 3 

 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 6250

Abbreviated Title: ORDINANCE AMENDING ROOM RENTAL TAX ALLOCATIONS FOR FEDC

Department(s): GENERAL

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No X

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes No X

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No X

  (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

2024+

$150,000
Golden Heart Plaza and Barnette Landing Maintenance Contract $50,000

$400,000
$2,270,000

$2,870,000

2024+

$4,200,000

$4,200,000

Initial mb Date 6/5/2023

TOTAL

Based on room rental tax receipts of $4,200,000, the city would retain $1,330,000.   This is an increase of $385,000 
from the 22.5% allocation.

Reviewed by Finance Department:

TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

General Fund (Room Rental Taxes)

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

If yes, type of positions?

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
EXPENDITURES:

Fairbanks Economic Development Corporation

Discretionary Grants
Explore Fairbanks

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 32 of 44



Introduced by: Council Member Cleworth 
 Introduced:  June 12, 2023 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6251 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE 
CHAPTER 50 PERSONNEL, SECTION 50-209 TRAINING 

REIMBURSEMENT, SECTION 50-281 PERSONAL LEAVE, 
AND SECTION 50-285 HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE 

 
 WHEREAS, Fairbanks General Code Chapter 50 Personnel has sections that 
have not been updated in over twenty years. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  FGC Sec. 50-209, Sec. 50-281, and Sec. 50-285 is amended as follows [new 
text in bold/underline font; deleted text in strikethrough font]: 
 

Sec. 50-209. - Training reimbursement. 
 
(a) A department head or the mayor may authorize an employee to 

attend training seminars or classes relevant to the employee's 
duties and responsibilities. All reasonable costs for such training 
shall be reimbursed by the employer. The term "training" shall mean 
any educational program, theoretical or otherwise, where the 
primary purpose is to enhance the employee's skill or proficiency in 
the performance of the employee's duties.  

 
(b) Costs incurred by the employee for the maintenance of job 

proficiency shall be reimbursed provided that the training has been 
approved by the department head or the mayor.  

 
(c) In those cases where the elected or appointed official or employee 

is away on authorized business for less than a 24-hour day not 
involving overnight lodging, such elected or appointed official or 
employee shall be reimbursed at the authorized per diem rate. In 
those cases where the elected or appointed official or employee is 
away on authorized business involving overnight lodging, such 
elected or appointed official or employee shall be reimbursed for 
overnight lodging. An employee's per diem allowance in excess of 
seven calendar days shall be reimbursed at half the rate of the 
foregoing rate commencing with the first calendar day thereafter, 
and shall constitute full reimbursement for all costs incurred, in 
which case the mayor may authorize higher reimbursement, proven 
by receipts. No employee shall receive per diem when either the 
city or another agency, government or private, pays for all meals 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 33 of 44



Ordinance No. 6251 
Page 2 

and lodging for the employee. The per diem rate shall be $40.00 
per day the same as the State of Alaska rates as stated in the 
Alaska Administrative Manual (AAM). 

 
* * * * * * * * 

 
Sec. 50-281. - Personal leave. 
 
(a) Personal leave shall accumulate at the rate of 120 working hours 

per calendar year for the first twenty-four months of continuous 
employment, 160 working hours per calendar year for the next 
twenty-four months of continuous employment, and 240 working 
hours per calendar year for all months of continuous employment 
thereafter. Personal leave hours shall be credited pro rata per pay 
period. Personal leave shall accrue as follows: 

 
Continuous 
Employment Period:  

Hours:  

Up to 3 Years  160 hours per calendar year  
3 – 5 Years 200 hours per calendar year  
Over 5 Years 240 hours per calendar year 

 
Employment for less than a full pay period shall be prorated 
for the purpose of computing personal leave. 

 
(b) [Reserved.]Personal leave in excess of 600 hours will be 

cashed out on the final check of the calendar year.  Employees 
covered by this chapter may cash out personal leave in 
accordance with the following schedule:   

 
Total Personal Leave Hours  
   0—160 hours  Cannot cash out  
   Over 160 hours 100% cash out value  

 
(c) Personal leave may be scheduled by the employee subject to the 

approval of the employee's department head. Personal leave shall 
not be unreasonably withheld.  

 
(d) Scheduled personal leave may be taken in conjunction with 

approved travel on city business so long as any additional expenses 
to the city are reimbursed by the employee. When personal leave 
is used for illness or bereavement, the employee shall notify the 
supervisor as soon as possible.  

 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 34 of 44



Ordinance No. 6251 
Page 3 

(e) Upon termination of any employee covered by this chapter, accrued 
personal leave up to a maximum of 500 hours or the cap as 
established in subsection (f) of this section shall be paid at the  
employee’s current rate and manner provided in this chapter.  

 
(f) Employees, who as of effective date of this section have in excess 

of 500 hours in personal leave will not be subject to the 500 hour 
limit on cash out of personal leave hours at the time of termination, 
but instead their hours will be capped at the number of hours they 
have at the effective date of this section; except that if a member 
exceeds his cap due to the denial of the employee's leave requests 
or due to work requirements, those hours beyond the employee's 
cap will be cashed out at 90 percent of full value. Hours in excess 
of the cap not cashed out on the anniversary date shall be carried 
into the following year and have no cash value.  

 
(g) Subject to the cap provision set forth in this subsection and 

subsection (f), any employee covered by this chapter may cash out 
his personal leave in accordance with the following schedule. Cash-
out requests under this subsection are not a matter of right but must 
be submitted to the mayor for approval. Competing requests 
submitted to the mayor shall be subject to seniority status. The 
cashed out hours will be paid on a separate check due at the same 
time as the employee's next regular paycheck. Cash-outs are not 
considered compensable hours for pension benefit payments.  

 
(h) Employees hired prior to the effective date of this ordinance shall 

have their leave accrual rate "frozen" as of the effective date of this 
ordinance, and their leave cap, if greater than 500, will likewise be 
established as of the effective date.  

 
Total Personal Leave Hours  

 0—200 hours  Cannot cash out  
200—500 hours  100% cash out value  
Over cap or 500 
hours  

No cash value  

 
* * * * * * * * 

 
Sec. 50-285. - Health insurance coverage. 
 

The city will provide employees covered by this chapter a group 
insurance program for medical, dental, life and vision coverage 
comparable to that provided other city employees provided that the 
employees will pay plan costs in excess of $750.00 per employee per 
month. Employees covered by this chapter will allocate the health 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 35 of 44



Ordinance No. 6251 
Page 4 

care portion of the package rate increase for health insurance unless 
the cost is fully covered.  

 
Section 2.  That the effective date of this Ordinance is the 1st day of July 2023. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       David Pruhs, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk  Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 36 of 44



 Introduced by:  Mayor David Pruhs 
 Introduced:  June 12, 2023 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 6253 

 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PERMANENT LIFE 

INSURANCE PLAN FOR COMMISSIONED OFFICERS WITHIN 
THE FAIRBANKS POLICE DEPARTMENT TO ENHANCE 

RECRUITMENT AND HIRING 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks must maintain effective recruiting and retention 
efforts within a competitive workforce and has significant staffing concerns within the 
Fairbanks Police Department; and 

 
WHEREAS, a permanent life insurance plan can allow the insured to receive living 

benefits and lifetime income; and 
 
WHEREAS, a permanent life insurance plan can provide immediate death benefits 

to those insured as well as tax-deferred growth that can provide supplemental retirement 
benefits in the future; and 

 
WHEREAS, offering a permanent life insurance plan to commissioned officers 

within the Fairbanks Police Department would enhance recruitment and hiring, therefore, 
reducing staffing concerns. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows.  
 
 SECTION 1. The City of Fairbanks will offer a permanent life insurance benefit to 
thirty-seven full-time commissioned officers within the Fairbanks Police Department. 
 

SECTION 2. The City of Fairbanks will provide an annual payment of $10,000 to 
the permanent life insurance plan on behalf of full-time commissioned officers during their 
employment with the City. 

 
SECTION 3. The City of Fairbanks will require the employee to be vested for 

thirteen years to receive the benefits of the plan. 
 
SECTION 4. The effective date of this Ordinance is five days after adoption. 

 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 David Pruhs, City Mayor 
  

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 37 of 44



Ordinance No. 6253 
Page 2 of 3 

YEAS:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 
  

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 38 of 44



Ordinance No. 6253 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 6253

Abbreviated Title: ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A PERMANENT LIFE INSURANCE PLAN

Department(s): POLICE

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No X

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes No X

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No X

  (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

2023 2024+ TOTAL

-$             -$             -$             

-$             -$             -$             

2023 2024+ TOTAL

-$                 -$                 -$                 
.

-$                 -$                 -$                 

Initial mb Date 5/31/2023

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

If yes, type of positions?

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
EXPENDITURES:

PERMANENT LIFE INSURANCE PLAN

The City of Fairbanks will provide $10,000 a year for a permanent life insurance plan for commissioned officers in the 
Police Department.  The city anticipates providing the plan for thirty-seven employees for an annual total of $370,000.  
The plan will be funded by reducing seven budgeted positions in the Police Department (annual savings $990,720).

Reviewed by Finance Department:

TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

GENERAL FUND

TOTAL

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 39 of 44



City of Fairbanks

MEMORANDUM

To: City Council Members

From: David Pruhs, City Mayor

Subj: Request for Concurrence – Fairbanks Diversity Council

Date: June 21, 2023

The term of Seat D on the Fairbanks Diversity Council (FDC), currently filled by Ms.
Juanita Webb, will expire on June 30, 2023.  

Ms.  Webb has reapplied for  continued service on the FDC.  I  hereby request  your
concurrence to following reappointment:

Seat D Juanita Webb Term to Expire:  June 30, 2026

Ms. Webb’s application is attached.  

Thank you.

dds/

City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 40 of 44



City of Fairbanks, Alaska

Fairbanks Diversity Council

Board Details

The purpose of the Fairbanks Diversity Council (FDC) is to provide a citizens’ forum to the City Council and the Borough Assembly,
provide advice and recommendations to promote equal opportunity for all members of the public, serve as a diversity advisory board, and
recommend adoption of a Diversity Action Plan.

The Fairbanks Diversity Council has adopted the following Mission Statement:

The City of Fairbanks recognizes that our community is a diverse one, with a wide variety of ethnic backgrounds, cultures, beliefs and
orientations and recognizes this diversity as an asset and resource for our community. The establishment of a Fairbanks Diversity Council
can provide the City Council and Fairbanks North Star Borough Assembly with advice and recommendations to promote equal
opportunity for all members of the public.

Overview

Size  13 Seats

Term Length  3 Years

Term Limit  N/A

Additional

Fairbanks Diversity Council Page 1 of 2City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 41 of 44



Board/Commission Characteristics

The FDC will consist of 11 voting members, 10 of which will be appointed by the City Mayor and subject to approval

by the City Council. All members must be members of the Fairbanks community. One of the voting members will be

appointed by the Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) Mayor, subject to confirmation by the Borough Assembly. All

appointments of the public members shall be for three-year terms, without compensation. The City Mayor shall serve

as the non-voting Chairperson of the FDC. The Mayor may appoint a chairperson from the membership of the FDC. If

the Mayor appoints a chairperson, the person will remain a voting member and will serve a one-year term as

chairperson. The FDC will choose a vice chairperson from among its members. The person chosen will serve a one-

year term as vice chairperson. When the term of the chairperson expires, the vice chairperson will become the

chairperson, and the FDC will choose a new vice chairperson from among its members. If the Mayor chooses to

serve as the chairperson, the vice chairperson will not progress to the chairperson position. The Mayor will remain a

non-voting member of the FDC even if not serving as chairperson. The FDC may organize committees and adopt

administrative rules and procedures to accomplish its purposes.

Meetings

A quorum shall be necessary to conduct a meeting. A quorum shall consist of a majority of the appointed voting

members of the FDC. The business of the FDC shall be transacted by a majority vote of voting members present after

a quorum is established. All meetings shall be held, and notices and agendas shall be posted, in compliance with the

Alaska Open Meetings Act. Meetings are held on the second Tuesday of each month at 5:30 p.m. in the City Council

Chambers at City Hall. Minutes of FDC proceedings shall be kept and filed in accordance with applicable laws dealing

with public records. In all matters of parliamentary procedure not covered by rules and procedures adopted under

Ordinance No. 5939, the current version of Robert’s Rules of Order will govern. The FDC shall keep permanent

records or minutes of all meetings. The minutes shall promptly be filed in the office of the City Clerk and shall be open

to public inspection. The City Clerk shall supply the FDC with administrative support.

<a href="https://www.fairbanksalaska.us/bc-diversity"><b>Approved Resolutions</b></a>

Enacting Legislation

FGC 2-231 through 2-235

Enacting Legislation Website

http://bit.ly/2yvhZqp

Joint Commission Details

The FDC shall include 11 public voting members broadly selected to represent the diverse people of the Fairbanks

community. Ten members shall be appointed by the City Mayor subject to the approval of the City Council. One

member shall be appointed by the Fairbanks North Star Borough Mayor subject to the approval of the Fairbanks North

Star Borough Assembly.

Email the Commission Members

diversitycouncil@fairbanks.us

Fairbanks Diversity Council Page 2 of 2City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 42 of 44



Submit Date: May 07, 2023

First Name Last Name

Email Address

Primary Phone Alternate Phone

City of Fairbanks, AK Boards & Commissions

Profile

Mailing Address

Are you a City of Fairbanks resident? *

 No 

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Fairbanks Diversity Council: Submitted 

Interests and Experiences

Question applies to Fairbanks Diversity Council

Please tell us how your diversity will benefit and contribute to the mission and purpose of
the Fairbanks Diversity Council. You may list any group, club, organization, etc. that you are
formally affiliated with.

I believe my diverse life and work experience has opened me up to a very diverse thought process. I have
been treated less than because of being a female, because of being part Charakee. Ii have been part of
Diversity Councils within my career and on local levels as well.

Why are you interested in serving on a City board or commission? What experiences can
you contribute to the benefit of the board or commission?

Enjoy participating in local groups that are able to facilitate change for the overall good of my community.

Please provide a brief personal biography in the space below, or attach a resume.

Currently: PCA/pca coordinator for disabled family member, baking assistance, senior companion
program (4 clients), meals on wheels program phone contact for wellness checks, Health and Social
Services Commission, Host Lions Club President, Wallbusters member. 16 year career with Safeway with
most of those years in management.

Juanita Webb

Juanita Webb Page 1 of 2City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 43 of 44



List any professional licenses or training you believe are relevant to the seat you are
applying for.

Diversity training with Safeway corporation, life experiences.

Juanita Webb Page 2 of 2City Council Agenda Packet - June 26, 2023 44 of 44


	AGENDA - June 26, 2023
	MINUTES
	Regular Meeting Minutes of May 22, 2023

	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Liquor License Renewals

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Ordinance No. 6249
	Ordinance No. 6250
	Ordinance No. 6251
	Ordinance No. 6253

	WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL
	Reappointment to the Fairbanks Diversity Council




